M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 15, 2001

9: 02 AM
TAPES
SFC-01 # 16, SIDE A
SFC-01 # 16, SIDE B
SFC-01 # 17, SIDE A

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Dave Donl ey convened the neeting at approxinmately 9:02 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senat or Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senator Loren Leman

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donal d O son

Senator Lyda G een

Al so Attending: SENATOR RI CK HALFORD, MARY GORE, Juneau Area
Director, Special dynpics; JOHN MAGALOITI, Special dynpic
Athlete; JUSTIN ROBERTS, Special Oynpic Athlete; N ALL JOHNSON,
Special Aynpic Athlete; ANNALEE MCCONNELL, Director, Ofice of
Managenent and Budget; WLLIAM G BRI TT, JR, State Pipeline
Coordi nator, Ofice of the Comm ssioner, Departnent of Natural
Resources; KURT FREDRI KSSON, Deputy Conmmi ssioner, Departnent of
Environnental Conservation; KEN TAYLOR, Director, D vision of
Habitat and Restoration, Departnent of Fish and Gane; PATRICK
GALVIN, Director, D vision of Governnental Coordination; REYMOND
HENDERSON, Director, Departnent of Adm nistration, Departnment of
Labor and Wbrkf orce Devel opnent; KURT PARKAN, Deputy Conm ssi oner,
Department of Transportation and Public Facilities; KEN FREEMAN,
Speci al Assistant, Business and Gas Line Devel opnent, O fice of the
Governor; JAN CE LEVY, Supervising Attorney, G|, Gas and M ning
Section, Cvil D vision, Departnent of Law, LARRY PERSILY, Deputy
Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Revenue

Attendi ng via Tel econference: From Anchorage: KELLY N COLELLGQ,
Assistant Fire Marshal, Division of Fire Prevention, Departnent of

SFC- 01 (1) 02/ 15/ 01



Public Safety; RI CHARD MCMAHON, Chief, Lands Records Information
Di vi sion of Support Services, Departnent of Natural Resources; MARK
MEYERS, Director, Division of Ol and Gas, Departnent of Natura
Resour ces

SUMVARY | NFORMATI ON

SB 19-CH LD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT/ SOC SEC. #
The bill npbved from Comm ttee.
SB 80- APPROP: SPECI AL OLYMPI CS

The Commttee heard from the sponsor, a representative of the
Special Aynpics, and athletes. An anmendnent was adopted and the
bill noved from Conm ttee.

SB 73- SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRI ATI ONS/ AMEND APPROP.
SB  74- FAST TRACK SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRI ATI ONS

The Committee heard from the departnents involved in the natura
gas pipeline efforts. The bill was held in Commttee.

#sb19

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 19( HES)

"An Act relating to federal child support enforcenent
requi renents regarding social security nunber information
enpl oyer reports about enployees, and certain kinds of
automated data matching with financial institutions; repealing
the term nation date of changes made by ch. 87, SLA 1997, and
ch. 132, SLA 1998, regarding child support enforcenent and
rel ated prograns; repealing the nonseverability provision of
ch. 132, SLA 1998; repealing uncodified laws relating to ch.
87, SLA 1997, and ch. 132, SLA 1998; and providing for an
effective date."

This was the second hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.
[ TAPE MALFUNCTI QN

It was noted that there was no further discussion on the
| egi sl ati on.

Senat or Leman offered a notion to report fromCommttee, CS SB 19
(HES), with a new zero fiscal note, dated February 13, 2001, from

SFC- 01 (2) 02/ 15/ 01



t he Departnent of Revenue.
There was no objection and the bill MOVED from Commttee.
#sb80

SENATE BI LL NO. 80

"An Act meking a special appropriation to the Departnent of
MIlitary and Veterans' Affairs for a grant to 2001 Speci al
A ynpics Wrld Wnter Ganes; and providing for an effective
date."

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Committee.

BILL STOLTZ, staff to the bill's sponsor, Senator Rick Halford,
testified that the $500, 000 allocated to the Departnent of Mlitary
and Veterans Affairs is to help cover the costs of food and housi ng
for the approaching 2001 Special Oynpics Wrld Wnter Ganes.

Co-Chair Donley referred to the proposed Anendnent #1 and asked if
the bill's sponsor supported it.

M. Stoltz responded that the anendnent is consistent with the
intent of the legislation to fund food and housi ng expenses wth
t he expectation that any remai ning funds would be returned to the
agency.

MARY GORE, Juneau Area Director, Special Jdynpics in Juneau,
enphasi zed the need for food to feed the hungry athletes. She
introduced three athletes pointing out the nmedals each wore and
explaining that the victories qualified themto participate in the
wor | d ganes.

JOHN MAGALOTTI, Special dynpic snowboarder, spoke of his |ove for
the sport and the opportunity to neet athletes from80 countries.

JUSTI N ROBERTS, Special A ynpic al pine skier expressed that he has
been skiing his whole life, the past seven with the Special
A ynpics. He stated that he trains and tries to do his best in the
conpetitions.

NI ALL JOHNSON, Special dynpic snowboarder, told the Committee
about the Air Force Band dances held during the ganes, noting that
at the last event, he danced with M ss Teen Juneau.

The Conmittee nmenbers and ot hers present applauded the athletes.

SFC- 01 (3) 02/ 15/ 01



Anendnent #1: This anendnment repl aces "operating costs" with "costs
related to housing and food expenses". It also adds a new bill
section to read, "Any portion of this appropriation not expended
| apses June 30, 2001."

Senat or Lenman noved for adoption. Wthout objection it was ADOPTED

Senator Ward noted the great anmount of volunteer efforts and the
exposure the ganmes would bring to Alaska. He stated, "this is one
exanple of public funds ...[where] we're going to have a roll-over
effect and good will for years and years to conme not only in the
lives of the participants but all those who got to enter in and
help along with this."

SENATOR RICK HALFORD arrived and stated that the bill and the
acconpanyi ng sponsor statenment were self-explanatory. [Copy on
file.] He added that the anmendnent is consistent with his intent
that any unused funds woul d | apse.

Co- Chair Donl ey shared his discussion with US Senator Ted Stevens,
Honorary Chair, 2001 Special Aynpics Wrld Wnter Ganes, and was
assured there would be an effort to | apse any unnecessary funds.

Senator Leman concurred with Senator Ward's statenent. Senator
Leman stated that he carefully scrutinizes supplenent budget
requests, but that this request, "is one that | believe rises to
the top." He continued, "These three young nen well-represent what
this is about."” He stated that he was proud to be a supporter of
the | egislation.

Co-Chair Donley remnded the Commttee of the legislative
comm tnment nmade to support the world ganmes, which hel ped secure
Anchorage as the chosen site.

Senator Lenman offered a nmotion to nove SB 80 22-LS0550\A, as
anended, from Committee.

The notion carried wthout objection and the bill MOWED from
Conmittee.

#sb73

#sb74

SENATE BI LL NO. 73

"An Act nmaking supplenental appropriations and naking and
anendi ng ot her appropriations; and providing for an effective
date. ™

SFC- 01 (4) 02/ 15/ 01



SENATE BI LL NO. 74
"An Act nmaking supplenental and other appropriations; and
providing for an effective date."

This was the second hearing for these bills in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

Section 8

Mul ti pl e Departnents

Gasl i ne- Capi tal Budget Review Unit (BRU)

Gas pi peline devel opnment-related activities to expedite field
season research and ot her pre-application state
responsibilities.

$1, 960, 100 general funds

ANNALEE MCCONNELL, Director, Ofice of Mnagenent and Budget,
Ofice of the Governor, shared that since the fall of 2000, the
governor has had state agencies working as a team to advance
devel opment of North Sl ope natural gas. She spoke to the intensive
effort and the inportance that the state support the private
sector's heavy workl oad rather than inpede those efforts. She said
it had beconme apparent that the nagnitude of the work ahead is nore
than initially predicted. She noted that the governor has requested
funding for FY 02 to address these issues, but that additional work
must be done before the start of that fiscal year.

Ms. McConnell explained the reasons for submtting the request as a
capital project rather than as an operating expense. She said that
by listing the project as a single budget item it would be
possible to view the process as an inter-rel ated package between
t he agenci es involved. She al so stressed that as a capital project,
it would be clear that the efforts are project-specific instead of
t he on-going state agency operations. She added that any positions
added would be funded only through the duration of the project
rather than permanent positions, which would be clearer with the
capital project designation.

WLLIAM G BRITT, JR, State Pipeline Coordinator, Ofice of the
Comm ssi oner, Departnment of Natural Resources testified that the
suppl emental budget request would help advance devel opnent of
Al askan's natural gas consistent with the foll ow ng principles.

» Al askans working on the project

Al askan busi nesses providing services and materials for
t he project

SFC- 01 (5) 02/ 15/ 01



e Al askan consuners with access to the gas

* New and existing Al askan industrial users with access to
t he gas

e Alaskans receiving a fair return for the state-owned
resour ces

M. Britt asserted that the tinme is right for |arge-scale
devel opment of Al askan natural gas and that North Anmerica is the
mar ket to receive the gas. He added that the North American route
is the way to nove the gas from the source to the market. He
stressed that the gas pipeline nmust "be built now because demand is
up, supplies are not keeping up, storage docks are down and the
price of gas is up as a result.”

Co-Chair Donley interrupted to stress that the Coonmttee did not
need to be convinced of the reasons for getting the gas to market,
but rather needed to understand the necessity for the fast tracked
noney.

M. Britt resuned, saying the request would allow the state to
advance the natural gas devel opnent project by:

e establishing a coordinated state permtting process
* beginning to gather data for processing the permts

e« working with project proponents to advocate Al askan
interests

 working with project proponents to insure that their
permt application are conplete, which would allow the
state to nove nore rapidly when the applications are
recei ved

 devel oping information on economc and fiscal issues for
policy nmakers

 advocating Al askan interests before the US Congress and
wi th federal and Canadi an agenci es

* informng Al askans of the issues involved in devel oping
Al askan natural gas and soliciting their views on those
I ssues

M. Britt stated these efforts woul d neke:

* the gas pipeline project nore responsive to the state
priorities

e state governnent smarter about critical i ssues
surroundi ng a gas pipeline project

* better decisions related to those issues

SFC- 01 (6) 02/ 15/ 01



e it possible to authorize the project nore quickly when an
application is received

e better permt and authorizations that the state issues

e the permts and authorizations that others issue nore
responsive to Al askan priorities

e Alaska's financial return fromthe project greater

Senat or Ward wanted to know the existing permtting problens that
call for the streamine efforts.

M. Britt stated he would not characterize the current system as
havi ng probl ens. He described his duties as a coordinator and the
di scovery that when state agencies work together with a unified
pl an, resources and information could be shared and the process
woul d nove efficiently.

Ms. McConnell also noted that a coordinated effort would allow the
statutory and regul atory process to proceed faster.

Ms. McConnell then addressed Co-Chair Donley's earlier question on
the need for the funds before the start of the next fiscal year.
She relayed that producers had al ready announced their expectation
to spend $75 nmillion over the next nine nonths. She stressed the
need for the state to be prepared to address applications when they
are submtted. She added that the fiscal issues also need to be
resolved and that the public needs to be educated on the matter.
She stated that in order for field research and data gathering to
begi n the upcom ng sumrer, preparation for that work nust begin at
once.

Senat or Austerman commented on where the pipeline would run and
what the benefits to Al aska would be. He was concerned that the
producers are hesitant to discuss the matter before they have
deci ded where they would like the pipeline. He stressed that he had
not yet agreed to allow the producers to determ ne that |ocation.
He qualified that the pipeline nust be built, but that he was
unconfortable with the governor's efforts.

Senator Wl ken wanted to know how this supplenental request
involves the University of Alaska. He relayed President Mark
Ham [ ton's desire to be included in the planning of the pipeline.
Senator Wl ken stated that the university had assets it could
"bring to the table."

Ms. McConnell stated that it was anticipated that the University of

Al aska woul d be very involved in the job training aspects of the
project, which would occur in FY 02.

SFC- 01 (7) 02/ 15/ 01



AT EASE 9:25 AM/ 9:27 AM

Department of Environnental Conservation

KURT FREDRI KSSQN, Deputy Conmi ssioner, Departnent of Environnental
Conservation, testified that the departnent would play a major role
in the gas line project. He listed air permts for the vesse
station, water quality issues, donestic wastewater issues with the
canp, solid waste and food safety, as exanples of the many
departnental prograns that would be involved in the permtting and
oversight of the project. He stated that the requested suppl enental
funds would be used to help identify where potential permtting
probl ens could arise. He shared that there is confusion wi th what
the state requires for environnental protection and the aspects of
the project itself. He explained that the intent is for the future
applicant and the departnent to prepare an appropriate application.
He enphasi zed that subm ssion of the actual application is expected
i n Decenber 2001.

M. Fredriksson continued saying that the departnent's main focus
is air, water and fuel issues. He pointed out that a portion of the
requested funds would be used to hire an air chem st to work with
the industry on anbient air quality nonitoring and neteor ol ogi cal
data that nust be collected the sunmer of 2001. State statute and
federal requirenents, he inforned the Conmmttee, dictate the
departnment to have one year of this data.

Senat or Austernman asked if the $140,000 allocated to this effort
woul d be utilized during the next four nonths.

M. Fredriksson affirmed and stressed the producers were requesting
di scussions on this project to begin in the next nonth. He stressed
the need to design the facilities to avoid potential environnental
pr obl ens.

Co-Chair Donley asked if this supplenental request would apply only
to the current year or if the departnent anticipated these
expendi tures woul d continue and whet her the departnent woul d submt
requests for additional funds.

Ms. McConnell replied that the proposed FY 02 budget contains such
a request and that she could explain in further detail at nenbers
request. She stressed that the supplenental request before the
Committee at this tinme was snmaller than the FY 02 request.

Co-Chair Donley asked if the FY 02 request would be contained in
the capital budget.

SFC- 01 (8) 02/ 15/ 01



Ms. MConnell affirmed. She spoke to additional information
received since the Decenber 2000 submttal, noting that the
Adm ni stration would submt amendnents to the original proposal.

Senat or Lenman requested backup information detailing the additional
positions.

M. Fredriksson stated he woul d provide such information.

Senat or Hof fman asked if the departnment was working with the Native
corporations who own nmuch of the land that the pipeline would
traverse.

M. Fredriksson responded that while no such efforts had been nade
to date, the departnent included working with all |andowners in its
pl anni ng process.

Co- Chair Donley understood that the oil conpanies had not yet
announced a tinmetable for the total project and that their working
group would start April 1, 2001. He asked why the departnent needed
the noney at this tine.

M. Fredriksson replied that the funds are necessary to "gear up"”
and to acquire and update the information gathered during previous
gas pi peline discussions held between 1978 and 1982. Wiile he was
unsure of the April 1 tinefranme, he knew that discussions regarding
environnmental issues had already begun. He advised that the
i ndustry has hired 50 new enpl oyees, with a goal of 90 enpl oyees to
address this issue. He relayed that the departnent had a neeting
schedul ed for February 28, 2001 with the producers.

M. Britt interjected that the producers are only one of the
proj ect conmponents. He stressed that the producers have already
subm tted requests for approximately $75 mllion worth of proposals
and have hired additional staff in anticipation for the projects.
He stated, "W are obligated to advocate the state's interest in
all of these different arenas.”

Senator Green asked if any existing staff has the necessary
qualifications listed in the proposal.

M. Fredri ksson answered that there were such enpl oyees and that he
would like to fill the new positions with these qualified staff
menbers. He singled out an enployee currently working in the
Division of Gl Spill Prevention and Response who previously worked
in the former gas line office. He enphasized the need for such
expertise. He suggested that new staff would be hired to fill the

SFC- 01 (9) 02/ 15/ 01



existing positions and the expertise would be directed to the
nat ural gas project.

Senator Green wanted to know if the departnent had a prioritization
mechanismin place to share these duties if the |egislature did not
fund this request.

M. Fredriksson affirmed the departnment does have a system and t hat
the natural gas pipeline project would conpete with existing
projects, such as air nonitoring and air permtting worKk.

Ms. McConnel |l added that other industries depend on the departnent
for their projects. She warned that because many services are fee-
based and not funded fromthe general fund, the anmount of work that
could be redirected to the pipeline project is |imted. She added
that there is great concern with the matter of recruitnment and that
many enployees are being lost to the federal governnent and the
private sector.

Senator G een asked for the total nunber of enployees in the
Departnent of Environnental Conservation.

M. Fredriksson replied there were approxi mately 425 positions in
t he departnent.

Senator Leman referred to HB 361, the "Fees Bill" from the 21°
Al aska State Legislature and asked the state’'s obligation for cost
recovery of this natural gas project under this |aw.

M. Fredriksson explained the inplications of HB 361 that
established a fee system which holds the departnment accountable
for its time and reinbursenent. He noted that this |aw does not
require 100 percent reinbursenent and that the departnment would
| ook to the state | ease authorities for reinbursenent.

Senat or Leman urged the accounting to be detailed and accurate in
order to justify what the state nay wi sh to recover.

Ms. McConnell stated that a working group had al ready been forned
to devise a tracking systemto identify any recoverabl e costs.

Senat or Hoffrman asked about the term of enploynent of the
addi tional staff requested.

M. Fredriksson referred to a projected tinefranme up through 2002

when the issue would be reconsidered. He stressed the positions
woul d not continue past the construction of the pipeline.

SFC-01 (10) 02/ 15/ 01



Departnent of Fish and Gane, Division of Habitat and Restoration

KEN TAYLOR, Director, Division of Habitat and Restoration,
Department of Fish and Gane, testified that the division is
responsi ble for ensuring that the fish and wildlife resources are
not inpacted, or that inpacts are avoided during the construction
of the gas pipeline. He stated that this could be done nost
successfully when the division is involved in the planning and
desi gn phases of construction. He explained that the suppl enental
request would fund a mniml approach to the issue, funding two
positions in FY 01 to prepare for the upcom ng summer field season.
He stressed the need for receiving the funds in order to have staff
in place by the start of the sumrer season, when gas |I|ine
consultants would be in the field.

M. Taylor spoke to the three critical field seasons, the sumer
and winter of 2001 and the spring of 2002. He stated that the
primary inpacts to avoid are fisheries related and that the
different field seasons are necessary to survey inpacts during
different tines of the year.

Co- Chai r Donl ey wondered how the division would be able to do field
surveys w thout knowi ng for certain the route of the pipeline.

M. Taylor replied that the division would focus on the Al aska
Hi ghway route due to existing permt activity on that |ocation.

Co- Chair Donley challenged that a recent poll shows 70 percent of
Al askans support a tidewater route. He then asked if, because nost
of the highway route follows the pipeline corridor, the data
al ready exists.

M . Taylor responded that the existing data was coll ected between
1978 and 1982 and does not focus on the entire area. He stressed
t hat changes have been nade and nore studies are necessary.

Senat or Aust erman questioned the $60, 000 allocation for two four-
nmonth positions. He cal cul ated the annual salary would be $120, 000
per enployee and asked if that were appropriate for the type of
wor k per f or ned.

M. Taylor affirmed, explaining that the positions would be upper
| evel positions, one supervisor and one pipeline coordinator, who
woul d supervise the field workers. He enphasized that the during
the Trans- Al askan Pipeline construction in the 1970s the division
had a field crew of 15. He stressed that the gas pipeline is a "big
effort” and the funding level is appropriate for the positions.

SFC-01 (11) 02/ 15/ 01



Senator Lenman asked if the division should rely on the project
sponsors to gather necessary information rather than collecting the
information itself.

M. Taylor agreed and stressed the effectiveness of working with
industry in the field, identifying solutions together.

Senator Ward asked if the division planned on transferring existing
enpl oyees into the positions.

M. Tayl or responded that while there were qualified peopl e already
on staff, their workloads were full. He stated that he did not plan
to transfer existing enployees into the new positions but stressed
t hat enpl oyees could apply during the open recruitnent period and
that they woul d be consi dered.

Senator Ward asked if the wtness had identified what other
projects would be inpacted if the supplenental funding were not
provi ded.

M. Tayl or had not because 80 percent of the division's funding is
already targeted to existing projects and could not be redirected.
Tape SFC-01 #16 Side B  9:50 AM

Senator Ward asked if this neant no other projects would "drop off"

because of the natural gas pipeline.

M. Taylor did not know how the division could assune this workl oad
with the existing staff |evel

Ms. McConnell explained that project-specific federal and other
fund sources could not be shifted to a different project.

Senat or Ward understood that 20 percent of the division's funding
was not project-specific.

M. Tayl or responded that approxi mately 12 percent is general funds
and that the legislature has directed the division to target those
funds toward the statutory permtting responsibilities. Therefore,
he stressed that w thout instructions from the |egislature the
di vision would continue to follow the directive.

Senat or Aust erman asked how many enpl oyees work for the division.

M. Taylor answered there are 90 enpl oyees.

SFC-01 (12) 02/ 15/ 01



Senator Austerman wanted to know how many were located in
Anchor age.

M. Taylor estimated the nunber was between 40 and 43.

Senator Hoffman referred to the $32, 000 Departnent of Environmental
Conservation travel budget, wth which that departnent could
conduct fieldwork. He wondered how nuch fieldwork the Division of
Habi tat and Restoration could performwith the only $3,900 that it
request ed.

M. Taylor replied that nost of the fieldwrk would be conducted
during the upcomng summer and that funds for that work were
requested in the FY 02 budget. He stressed that the initial effort
woul d focus on analyzing the earlier collected data contained in 35
file cabinets and to hire staff and plan fieldwork projects. He
hoped to fill the two positions in April, with fiel dwork begi nning
in early June.

Ofice of the Governor, Division of Governnental Coordination

PATRI CK GALVIN, Director, D vision of Governnmental Coordination

out-laid the division's primary responsibility for inplenenting the
Al aska Coastal Managenent Program (ACMP). He explained the
statutory obligation to make a consistency determ nation for
projects that require a state or federal permt. He noted that for
this project, the division would perform a consistency
determ nation for the gas pipeline. He stated that the request is
to hire a project review coordinator who would engage in pre-
application assistance for this fiscal year, and performthe actual
consi stency review when the project is submtted in Decenber 2001.

M. Glvin explained the process of coordinating all permt issuers
to make the determnation of whether the project would be
consistent with federal and state requirenments and al so how the
permts would be inplenented.

Co-Chair Donley asked which portion of the pipeline would be
subj ect to the ACVP requirenents.

M. Glvin responded the highway route would be subject to ACW
requi renents at the origination point on the North Sl ope.

Depart ment of Labor and Wor kf orce Devel opnent

REYMOND HENDERSON, Director, Department of Admi nistration,
Department of Labor and W rkforce Developnent, detailed the

SFC-01 (13) 02/ 15/ 01



departnent's role in assessing the occupational supply and demand
to determne what job classes would be required to construct and to
operate the gas pipeline. He stated that a new | abor econom st
position woul d supervise existing staff, and that the remai nder of
the costs woul d cover associated travel and contractual needs.

Senat or Green asked how a three-nonth delay in this funding would
affect the departnment's efforts.

M. Henderson replied that the Cccupational Enpl oynment Survey (CES)
begins in Cctober of each year and that the departnent needs to
begin right away to nodify the survey. He warned that if the
process did not begin imediately, the entire survey project would
be del ayed 12 nont hs.

Ms. MConnell added that Departnent of Labor and Workforce
Devel opnment has been identified as a significant aspect of the
overall gas pipeline project. She asserted that the goal of the
| egi sl ature, the Adm nistration and the private sector is to fil
as many jobs as possible with Al askans. Wth accurate data up
front, she stated that the Admnistration would be in a better
position to work with the university and others to provide job
training and to match Al askans wi th enpl oyers.

Senator Geen asked if industry already knew their needs. She
guestioned the need for special research.

M. Henderson responded that while the industry may have an idea of
their needs, the departnent needed to begin discussions wth
experts to "find out exactly what it is going to take."

Departnment of Public Safety, Division of Fire Prevention

[ Note: Audio nmalfunction with tel econference sound quality.]

KELLY NI COLELLO, Assistant State Fire Marshal, Division of Fire
Preventi on, Depart ment of Publ i c Safety testified Vi a
tel econference from Anchorage that the legislature' s approval of
the supplenmental request would allow the division to prepare
engi neering and training regarding the practices and devel opnent
criteria of natural gas pipeline production. He continued that this
woul d allow the division to respond to the applicant's request for
buil ding and construction permts, stressing the inportance of
under st andi ng, ascertaining and avoiding the hazards involved in
advanci ng technol ogy. He pointed out that while the division has
experience with other oil production facilities, their experience
with natural gas is limted. He anticipated that this training
woul d help elimnate delays with project approvals.

SFC-01 (14) 02/ 15/ 01



M. N colello advised that if this request is not approved, the
division would not alter the |level of service currently offered,
but woul d be di sadvantaged in pre-construction design and pl anni ng.

Senat or Leman wanted to know where the training is avail abl e.

M. Ncolello replied that the nost econom cal courses were held on
a regular basis in Chicago, Illinois and Houston, Texas.

Senator Leman found the particular request refreshing in that it
uses existing staff. He urged other departnments to "follow the
| ead" of this departnent.

Senator Austerman asked if the training had to be undertaken within
the next four nmonths or whether it could wait until the next fiscal
year.

M. N colello replied that the division has been receiving requests
fromplanners, but is currently unable to provide answers to their
vari ous questions.

Senator Ward wanted to know if the division knew what courses were
applicabl e given that a pipeline route was not yet chosen.

M. N colello answered that the specialized training would apply to
the natural gas facilities no matter where they are | ocated.

Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities

KURT PARKAN, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Transportation and
Public Facilities detailed the request to hire an Engineer 111 for
two nonths in 2001. He explained that the departnent owns the
hi ghway right-of-way and therefore nmust participate in any
permtting activities. He continued that the enployee in the new
position woul d develop a work plan for the next fiscal year as well
as preparing right-of-way files and nmake them available to the
i ndustry.

Senator Austerman calculated the salary for this position at
$22,500 for the requested two nonths, with an annual salary of
$135, 000.

M. Parkan responded that the figure was higher than the salary of
an Engineer 111.

Ms. McConnell interjected that the funds pay for both salary and
benefits.

SFC-01 (15) 02/ 15/ 01



Department of Natural Resources

M. Britt shared that during FY 01, the Joint Pipeline Ofice
proposes using the supplenental funds to begin inplenenting
Adm ni strative Order # 187, which allows permtting authorities to
begin to prepare for receipt of a gas pipeline application. He
stated that the major task would be the creation of a Gas Pipeline
Ofice (GO as an operating wunit of the State Pipeline
Coordinator's O fice. He pointed out that currently the Federa
State Joint Pipeline Ofice is the only operating unit of the State
Pi peline Coordinator's Ofice. He explained that the GPO would
provide multi-agency one stop permtting authorization and
over si ght.

M. Britt detailed that the suppl enental would fund the acquisition
of office space, begin to staff the office and create a work pl an
that would allow the participating agencies to work effectively
together. He noted that the Joint Pipeline Ofice would provide
managenent and engi neering technical work for the new office. He
stated that he intended to hire a Deputy State Pipeline
Coordi nator, an Adm nistrative Manager, a Systens Adm nistrator,
and a Records Manager by the end of FY Ol to assist himin the
startup of the new office. He anticipated that recruitment for
t hese positions would be difficult and that there were no existing
enpl oyees who were qualified. He referred to the vast amount of
data from the previous gas pipeline efforts that nust be
inventoried with gaps identified and a plan witten to collect
information in the sumer of 2001. He added that the O fice would
need to work wth federal and Canadian agencies to create
conpati bl e processes for dealing with the applications, and work
with the applicants thensel ves, and inform and engage the public.

[ Note: audio recording of teleconference feed is inaudible.]

RI CHARD MCMAHON, Chief, Lands Records Information, Division of
Support Services, Departnment of Natural Resources, testified via
tel econference from Anchorage on the goals of the division with
regard to the project. The first, he said, is to neet information
requirenents to allow the GPO to nake decisions. He indicated the
need to determ ne the conpl ex ownership and right-of-way matters of
the affected | and. He stressed that the "sooner we get a junp on
that, the faster we can respond to those kinds of questions that
conme up."” He listed the identification of hazardous materials,
ecol ogi cal assessnent, water quality, water volunme and the
ar cheol ogi cal inpacts as other areas where questions could arise.

Senat or Green asked about the addition of two enpl oyees included in

SFC-01 (16) 02/ 15/ 01



t he budget request.

M. MMahon detailed the four part-tinme positions spread over five
di vi si ons.

Senat or Hof f man asked for nore details on the $28, 000 request for
equi pnent and t he $185, 000 for contractual services.

M. Britt replied that the equipnment would supply the office
itself. He relayed the departnent's obligation to nmake the office
functional. He listed the largest contractual project for a file
i nventory, which he hoped could begin as soon as possible. Staff
recruitment, he said is another |arge procurenent itemin addition
to rent charges for the existing staff that would eventually nove
into the GPO

M. MMahon wanted to nake the Conmttee aware of the departnents’
cooperation with the University of Alaska on obtaining federal
funding for a geol ogi cal mappi ng project.

Senator W/ ken asked what proposed corridor the mapping project
woul d study. He wanted to know if the study area would follow the
rail belt.

M. MMahon responded that the study would begin in the Fairbanks
area and follow the Al aska H ghway to the Canadi an border

Ms. McConnell then noted that the budget request itenms presented
were covered by the adm nistrative order and woul d be represented
in the GPO. She stated that other agencies were also participating
and that their presentations woul d begin.

MARK MEYERS, Director, Dvision of Gl and Gas, Departnent of
Nat ural Resources testified via tel econference from Anchorage that
the division needs to study four basic issues to properly evaluate
any proposal for North Slope gas production.

M. Meyers stressed the reason the fundi ng was needed i nmedi ately
was to provide an "inherent understanding of any proposals by the
producers."” He noted that these projects would be conducted al nost
exclusively by consultants with departnent staff acting as project
managers.

M. Meyers explained the first study evaluates the royalty. He
asserted that royalty valuation nmakes a sizable difference in the
anount of revenue collected from oil and would also have a
"trenendous affect"” on the natural gas. He expressed the need to
under stand what the appropriate tariffs would be, what the market

SFC-01 (17) 02/ 15/ 01



conditions are, and the effects of a possible royalty reduction in
the future. He stated that this study would cost $55, 000.

M. Meyers detailed the second study, which is to access the denmand
for in-state natural gas. He stressed the inportance of know ng the
demand between industrial, commercial, and residential heating
users. He relayed the need to also ascertain the demand and the
econom c viability of supplying natural gas to rural Alaska. He
listed the cost of this study as $75,000 and noted that the work
woul d be contracted.

M. Meyers continued that the third itemis a "supply side study”,

whi ch woul d entail | ooking at other sources of gas in addition to
t he known resources on the North Slope. He shared that there has
been a great deal of effort to locate oil, but very little to

| ocate natural gas. He explained that this portion of the
appropriation would be used to hire a consultant and for
contracting helicopters, etc. to performthe necessary field work,
beginning in July 2001. He continued that the study would be
expanded in FY 02.

M. Meyers then listed a revenue study of Prudhoe Bay as the fina
project. He infornmed that major gas sales fromthe reservoir would
likely result in |ower annual reservoir pressures. He suggested
that proper timng in utilizing alternative sites such as Point
Thomson, which contain a large anount of natural gas, could
m nimze the anount of royalty oil |osses. He continued that the
study woul d al so review actual production methods in conjunction.
He spoke of economc factors involved in the two parts of the
st udy.

Senat or Austerman requested nore backup information on the in-state
nat ural gas demands study, particularly the criteria enployed. He
t hen asked about the $36, 000 funding request for personnel costs,
but noted no new positions were proposed.

M. Meyers replied that the departnment woul d engage student interns
to conpile data. He assured there would be no new positions
created. He noted the request also includes funds for travel costs
associated with the necessary fieldwrk for the supply and demand
st udi es.

M. Meyers then addressed the in-state demand study, relaying that
addi tional information would be provided to the Commttee.

Co-Chair Donley remarked that the federal governnent recently

renewed the export permt for liquefied natural gas (Ing) fromthe
Cook Inlet.

SFC-01 (18) 02/ 15/ 01



M. Meyers affirned the permt has been renewed through the year
2009.

Co-Chair Donley asked whether the review process was already
performed during the application for permt renewal.

M. Meyers responded that the O fice of Fossil Energy oversaw that
effort but that study does not take the global viewor the in-state
viability into account. He added that the projections were only
made t hrough 2009.

Co- Chair Donley comrented that this was "disappointing" that the
federal governnent would approve an export permt wthout
perform ng an anal ysis of the donmestic market.

Senator Hoffrman asked if the studies were planned to consider
pi peline spurs to increase in-state demand in rural A aska. He al so
wanted to know the | evel of demand in the Pacific Rimand the best
nmet hod of delivering natural gas to the Rimcountries.

M. Meyers replied that the export demand is studied on an on-goi ng
basis. He stated that the potential for delivering natural gas to
rural areas inside the state was contained in the proposed studies.

Ofice of the Governor

Ms. McConnell announced that the Alaska O 1 and Gas Conservation
Comm ssi on (AOGCC) woul d have an appropriation request for FY 02,
and that the office is involved in the natural gas pipeline
proj ect.

KEN FREEMAN, Speci al Assistant, Business and Gas Li ne Devel opnent,
Ofice of the Governor, explained his charge to take the | ead staff
roll for the Al aska H ghway Natural Gas Policy Council, which was
created by a recent adm nistrative order. He described the counci
as 28 individuals fromacross the state, co-chaired by Ji m Sanpson
and Frank Brown. He stated that the council in turn is charged with
the follow ng duties.

e ldentify how to maxim ze the benefits of an Al aska Hi ghway
pi peline project for the citizens of the state.

* Conduct public hearings and take testinmony fromthe public to
begin an assessnent of the public's priorities with regard to
t he pipeline project.

e Conpile a report for submssion to the governor, the Gas
Cabi net and the public by Novenber 30, 2001.

SFC-01 (19) 02/ 15/ 01



M . Freenman el aborated that the council plans to hold eight to ten
public hearings in either Anchorage or Fairbanks. He noted that the
fundi ng request would provide staff support, travel and expenses
and contractual services.

Senat or Ward asked if the financial planning for the gas pipeline
project reflects a particular route. He nentioned a route that |ed
to tidewater in N kiski.

M. Freeman responded that the counsel did not have a position
regarding financing. He explained this is because the counsel
pl anned to exam ne and determ ne the best financing nethod if the
state were to play a financial role in the project.

Senator Ward then asked about discussions held to date on the
natter.

M. Freeman relayed that it was not the governor's assessnent that
an Al aska Hi ghway pipeline precluded a pipeline to tidewater.

Senat or Ward enphasi zed, "I'm not talking about precluding. |I'm
tal king about including and meking it part of the original
di scussion. "

M. Freeman reiterated the counsel's mssion to nmaximze the
benefits to the state of an Al askan H ghway gas |line project. One
aspect of this process, he surm sed, would be to give consideration
to the best way to finance and nmake the pipeline possible. He
shared that subcomm ttees would be forned and that one subcommittee
would be directed to investigate the best way to utilize the
state's royalty share and whether the state should have a role in
financing the pipeline project.

Senator W/ ken pointed out that the Departnent of Natural Resources
conponent s consi sted of 40 percent of the funds requested but was
concerned with the 20 percent allocated to the Ofice of the
Governor. He wanted to know "what we're getting for the over
$400, 000". He calculated that 90 percent of the request is for
contractual and travel expenses. He asked for an explanation of
"contractual ".

M. Freeman responded that the contractual conponent would cover
the costs of hol ding public statew de neetings and al so exam ni ng
studies by the Division of Gl and Gas. He indicated that the
subconm ttees woul d be posed a nunber of questions, such as what is
the best way to access the natural gas. He listed the options as
access on the North Slope and access along the pipeline for

SFC-01 (20) 02/ 15/ 01



communities. He stated that the council would work internally with
the Division of Gl and Gas to ensure there is no duplication of
contractual services.

Ms. McConnell stressed the issue of "relative weight in terns of
the dollar anount."” She acknowl edged that public process is
particularly inportant at the begi nning of the process and that the
council needs funds in order to conduct public neetings.

Senator WI ken countered that the people of Al aska support a
natural gas line that runs through the state. He surm sed that
extensive public input is not necessary until "we put a little nore
flesh on the bones.” He referenced page 13 of the "Description of
Services in the Governor's FY2001 Suppl enental Gas Pipeline Budget
Request."” [Copy on file.] Specifically, he noted the eight itens
that this "well intentioned group” would focus on. These itens are
as foll ows.

* Benefits of nat ur al gas devel opnent to Al aska
comunities, including those located in rural areas of
Al aska,;

e Best uses of the state's royalty share of the gas and
pronotion or attraction of investnment for in-state and
val ue- added processi ng;

e Costs and benefits of the state taking delivery of its
royalty share of the gas in Al aska versus allowing a
proj ect devel oper to include the gas inits delivery flow
to the Lower 48 states;

e Options for projects utilizing gas-to-liquids, |iquefied
nat ural gas, and natural gas |iquids;

e Demand for in-state natural gas consunption and it
effects on a gas project;

e Environnental inpacts and necessary protection neasures;

e Training and readi ness of Alaskans for jobs on a gas
project; use of Alaska |abor pool by contractors and
subcontractors, and use of Al aska busi nesses; and

« State pronotion and facilitation of project financing,
i ncluding potential ownership by the state of sone or al
of a project.

Senator W/ ken focused on the first five and the eighth issues,
noting that the Division of Ol and Gas is undertaking these with
the three proposed studies. The Departnent of Environnental
Conservation, he pointed out, would handle the sixth itemand the
seventh is a function of the Departnent of Labor and Workforce
Devel opnent. He wondered if the $400,000 woul d not be better spent
in these departnents rather than for the counsel. He stressed that

SFC-01 (21) 02/ 15/ 01



it is the duty of these departnents to nmaximze the state's
investnment in these natters.

TAPE SFC-01 #17, SIDE A 10: 38AM

Senator W/ ken concl uded that he thought the $1.96 mllion total
anount of requested funds could be better spent by using the
"professionals who are charged with providing the answers that the
| egi slature requires.” He did not question that A askans are behind
t he pipeline project and suggested that the public hearings could
be a trade-off to allocating the funds to the agencies that would
better address the issues.

Co-Chair Donley commented on the nane of the group, the Al aska
Hi ghway Natural Gas Policy Council, and noted its bias toward the
hi ghway route. He questioned the group's ability to objectively
ascertain which route the public prefers.

M. Freeman responded that the council is specifically charged with
| ooking at the benefits of a highway route, and then to consi der
opportunities of spur routes to deliver natural gas to other areas.

Co-Chair Donley challenged that the "governor put the cart before
the horse" and that it woul d have been better to determ ne the best
route first rather than choosing the route then working to
determne that it was the best choice. He predicted that during the
public process, the council mght |earn that many people support a
di fferent route.

Ms. MConnell assured that an alternate route had not been
precl uded. However, she stressed that because no buyer has been
secured, the Admnistration is focusing on Al aska’s "best shot" for
devel opment in a "w ndow that may not |ast for very long."

Co-Chair Donley remarked that several Al askan mayors had subm tted
alternative proposals and that there seens to be |ocal support for
a different route than the governor’s plan. He stated that it is
i nconsistent to fund a group that would only advocate one specific
proposal when there was interest in others.

M. Freeman reiterated M. MConnell comments adding that he
anticipated increased permtting conplications if there were a
route change. He stated that the Adm nistration does not see
benefits to the state through contractual and enploynent
opportunities. He warned that if M ddle East producers approached
the state with a liquefied natural gas project proposal, "no one in

SFC-01 (22) 02/ 15/ 01



the Admnistration would be turning them away." However, he
stressed that 15 years of effort have been invested in a North
Slope to Valdez route, with no results. He enphasized that the
Al aska H ghway route is the best opportunity to "tap into a
massive, donestic demand of gas", pointing out that Anerican
consuners are using 21 trillion cubic feet of natural gas, wth
projections of alnost 30 by the end of the decade. He asserted that
Al aska shoul d be involved in supplying sone of that gas.

Co-Chair Donley suggested that instead of spending $420,000, as
proposed, the council could spend $15,000 and learn that the
majority of Al askans agree that a pipeline should run south, rather
than north. He added that nopst Al askans would also prefer to
maxi m ze the benefits to Al aska, including enploynent of Al askans.

Senat or Ward agreed and spoke of the constituents in his district
who have been working for years on securing a pipeline route that
ends in N Kkiski. He also agreed that this is a one-tine
opportunity, but stressed that the alternate routes should not be
precl uded from di scussi on.

M. Freenman responded that the governor was not precluding a
tidewater route to either Valdez or N kiski. M. Freeman specified
that the primary goal is to develop a pipeline and that the
governor believes that the nost likely route is an Al askan hi ghway
project. M. Freeman testified that this route is contained in the
state as far south as Delta, wth a possible spur to Cook Inlet or
Prince WIIiam Sound.

Senat or Ward understood the dynam cs that the route would go south
at least as far as Fairbanks. He argued that 600,000 Al askans
"woul d not get another bite of this apple” if the pipeline turned
east into Canada. He added that the natural gas supply in the Cook
Inlet was depleting and that Anchorage, Kenai Peninsula and Mat- Su
Vall ey residents could benefit froma gas pipeline traversing this
ar ea.

M. Freeman remarked that the tine was right to exam ne whether
there is a possibility to add a spur to the A aska H ghway pi peline
| eading to Cook Inlet. He stated that the intent is not only to
determne what is the best route within the Adm nistration, but to
al so garner the public's input.

Senat or Ward suggested that the governor should issue a new
admnistrative order renamng the task force with a title
i ndi cating support for a pipeline following the rail belt and to
the mayjority of Al aska's popul ation.

SFC-01 (23) 02/ 15/ 01



Co- Chair Donley pointed out that while a pipeline route to South
Central Al aska has not materialized after 15 years of work neither
had the Al aska H ghway route. He also took issue with the witness's
enphasis that a southern route would be a spur option, rather than
the main route.

Senat or Austerman felt that nost Al askans woul d be nore concerned
about the well being of Al aska rather than being overly concerned
about the energy situation in Oregon and California. He approved of
t he Departnment of Natural Resources study that woul d hel p nmake the
determ nation of the best route.

M. Freeman responded that the governor has three primary
principles with regard to the devel opnment of an Al aska Hi ghway
pipeline. The first, M. Freenan stated, is opportunities for jobs;
the second is access to the gas for Al askans; and finally, best
utilizing the state's royalty share. Therefore, he stated that
while the Admnistration wants to bring donestic natural gas to the
rest of the country, it is also a "phenonenal opportunity” to bring
gas to Al askans.

Senat or O son commended the valid points made by Conmttee nenbers
regardi ng the budget and the |ocation of the gas pipeline. However,
he stressed the inportance of "getting on the table" the pipeline
in order to begin discussion.

Departnent of Law

JANI CE LEVY, Supervising Attorney, Ql, Gas and Mning Section

Cvil Division, Departnment of Law testified that the departnent's
request would be used to assist the agencies with the m ssions that
have been outlined. She explained that one "in-house" assistant
attorney general along with outside council would work to educate
the other departnments on the |egal issues involved in a project of
such magni tude. She opined that Mrrison and Foerster, hired to
provi de expertise, would be cost-effective and valuable for the
state. She noted that the firmhas been representing the state for
many years and was involved in Al aska Natural Gas Transportation
Act .

Ms. Levy stressed that any application received by the state would
be stringently evaluated to ensure fair review

Depart nent of Revenue

LARRY PERSILY, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Revenue,
testified that it is the departnent's directive to tax the natura
gas no matter where the pipeline is located. He stated that the

SFC-01 (24) 02/ 15/ 01



departnent supports the route that is nost feasible and profitable
and that the budget request is to deal with this issue. If the
pipeline is built, he added that the departnent would need to be
educated so that as nuch value as possible can be captured. He
noted that natural gas issue has never been eval uated thoroughly by
the departnment and that the proposed project would be 20 tines the
volunme that is currently exported from Cook Inlet.

Senator Leman asked if the departnment had plans to review the
Econom c Limt Factor (ELF) revisions in either oil or gas, and if
so when recommendati ons woul d be presented to the |egislature.

M. Persily replied that the departnent was not working on such
| egislation but that it has been reviewing the activities of ELF
over the past five years and making projections for the upcom ng
ten years with regard to oil. He shared that a tentative session
was planned for Pedro van Meurs, a consultant based in Calgary,
Al berta, in the next nonth to specifically address ELF.

Ms. McConnell hoped the presentation conveyed the magnitude of the
project and the inportance of beginning the process i mredi ately.

Senat or Austerman asked if the total $420,000 requested would be
expended in the next four nonths with the report witten in
Novenber 2001.

Ms. McConnell qualified that the original request was prepared in
Decenber 2000, and that exact expenditure dates of the funds was
uncertain, although anticipated before June 30, 2001. She offered
to provide nore details on the matter.

Senat or Aust erman asked about the additional staff positions.

Ms. McConnell stated that the positions would support the counci
and woul d provide clerical support and were nonpermanent positions.

#
ADJ CURNIVENT

Co- Chair Donl ey adjourned the neeting at 10:57 AM

SFC-01 (25) 02/ 15/ 01



